NANAIMO & DISTRICT

HOSPITAL FOUNDATION

Funding Healthcare Needs «+ Central Vancouver Taland

NANAIMO & DISTRICT HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
FINANCE, INVESTMENT, & AUDIT COMMITTEE
Septemer 11, 2018 @ 3.00pm — 4.30pm
Boardroom in the former NDHF office
1801 Bowen Road, Madsen Centre

AGENDA

. Call to Order — Chair Moira Jenkins

. Approval of the Agenda 1 min
. Approval of Minutes — June 11, and July 16, 2018 Meetings 5 min

. Presentation of the Audited Financial Statements — Auditor Cara Light 40 min
. Review of 1°' Quarter Financial Report 20 min
. Review of EE7 and EE8 Monitoring Reports 20 min
. Update on Sale of Strata Units 5 min

. Adjournment



NANAIMO & DISTRICT HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
Finance, Investments & Audit Committee
Minutes

Bowen Road Board Room

June 11, 2018: 3.00pm

Present: G. Scoft (Chair) J. Perrino (CEO)
P. Birrer (Vice-Chair) S. Ryan (CFO)
M. Jenkins (Treasurer) T. May (Accountant)
M. Smith A. Nemeth — TD Private Investment
H. Popple C. Light — Grant Thornton

B. Maguire - Grant Thornton

Call to Order:
Moira Jenkins called the meeting to order at 3.04 pm

Approval of Agenda:
Agenda approved as presented.

MOTION: to acceptthe Agenda as presented
Moved by: M. Smith, Seconded by: P. Birrer

Approval of May 8, 2018 Meeting Minutes:
Minutes approved as presented.

MOTION: to approved the Minutes as presented
Moved by: M. Smith, Seconded by: P. Birrer

Investment Manager Presentation & Discussion of EE9, Investment of Funds:
Anna Nemeth, with TD Private Investment Counsel, reviewed the Foundation’s
Portfolio with the Committee. The portfolio was discussed in detail and
information was provided on the Foundation’s current asset mix guidelines, the
portfolio asset mix in relation to these guidelines, portfolio performance on an
annual and annualized basis, and portfolio performance as compared to the
benchmark. An economic and market update and outlook was provided, and, in
response to a question from the Committee, Anna Nemeth agreed to provide
additional information on the impact of the steel and aluminium tariffs on our
portfolio. The Committee agreed to change the asset class allowable range from
60%-80% to 50%-80% for Fixed Income, and from 20%-40% to 20%-50% for
Equities.




The Treasurer led a discussion on EES, and whether any changes are
recommended by our Investment Advisor. Return objectives were revised to
reflect the current asset mix as, with a heavy weighting in fixed income, the target
annual return will be hard to meet and maintain on a sustained basis. The target
annual return was amended from 4%-5% to 3%-5% gross. A number of changes
were made to the points included in paragraph 10 — see attached draft.

MOTION: To recommend approval of Policy EE9, as amended, to the Board
Moved by: P. Birrer, Seconded by: H. Popple

Presentation of the Audit Plan:
Cara Light, the Foundation’s Auditor, presented the Audit Planning Report to the
Committee, and outlined the role of the Auditor, Committee, and Staff. She
presented the Milestones and Deliverables for the Audit and reviewed in detail
the Audit process, and the audit procedures for Key Financial Reporting Areas.
The Committee then went in-camera to further discuss the Audit with the
auditors.

Update on Sale of Strata Units:

The CEO updated the Committee on the progress of the sale of our Strata Units
at 1801 Bowen Road as the real estate listing expires on June 30, 2018. The
Committee discussed options at length and decided not to renew the listing at
this time, asking staff to prepare a discussion paper on options for the September
meeting.

MOTION: To recommend to the Board that the Listing with NAl Commercial
not be renewed at this time
Moved by: M. Smith, Seconded by: H. Popple

MOTION: To request staff to prepare an options paper for discussion at the
September Committee Meeting
Moved by: Greg Scott, Seconded by: P. Birrer

Fufure Meeting Dates

Thursday, September 13, 3pm
Thursday, November 8, 3pm
Thursday, February 14, 3pm

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 4.45 pm



NANAIMO & DISTRICT HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
Finance, Investments & Audit Committee
Minutes

The Buzz Boardroom

July 16, 2018: 7.30am

Present:  G. Scott (Chair) J. Perrino {CEQ)
P. Birrer {Vice-Chair) 8. Ryan (CFOQ)
M. Jenkins (Treasurer)
M. Smith
H. Popple

Call to Order:
Moira Jenkins called the meeting to order at 7.45 am

Discussion around Offer Received for #102-1801 Bowen Road:
The CEO provided background on the offer received for Unit 102, 1801 Bowen
Road, Nanaimo:

We received an offer from Board member Tony Harris. The offer was $476,500
for the building plus our agreement to lease back the space for 10 years, with two
five year options to renew, for $4,500 (the equivalent of $30 per square foot) per
month. We counter-offered at $547,500 for the building, plus a lease amount of
$20 per square foot for 5 years, with two five year options to renew. The buyer
counter-offered at $525,000 and $27 per square foot. We countered at $540,000
and $20. The buyer came back at $532,000 and $25 per square foot, indicating
this was a final offer.

The Committee agreed that any offer and potential lease must be approved by
the Board, and that the buyer is clearly in a conflict of interest. The Committee
discussed the conflict in more detail, noting that the price offered by the buyer is
reasonable within current market conditions, the offer has been negotiated
between our realtor and the buyer's realtor, it is a contractual agreement and the
terms of the contract are clearly set out, and the lease {(which forms part of the
offer) will be reviewed by the Foundation’s lawyer prior to signing. The
Committee further noted that if the buyer recuses himself from any discussion
regarding the decision to accept or reject his offer on the Unit, then the conflict
shall have been adequately addressed.

The CEO explained that she had talked to our realtor, NAl Commercial CVI Ltd.
about the offer to see what his thoughts were. We felt the offer price for the
building was acceptable, and he agreed, given the current market conditions for



commercial real estate in Nanaimo — there is a lot available for sale. As far as
the proposed lease rate, he felt it was still a little high as market rents for similar
properties are between $17 and $20 per foot. He felt we could counter by asking
for 3 months free base rent, plus a tenant improvement allowance of ‘somewhere
around’ $10 per square foot.

The Committee discussed the offer at length. Members commented that the sale
price of the unit would pay off the outstanding mortgage entirely. We would still
own Unit 202, which we could rent out to mitigate the costs of the lease on Unit
102. We could also sell the unit and realize our equity. It was noted that other
tenants in the building pay between $24 and $26 per square foot, so this offer,
although slightly above market, is within the range of other rents in the building.
Some members felt there could be some risk to the Foundation’s reputation if it
became public that we had sold the building to a Board member and rented it
back at above market rent. Members felt generally this was a low risk, and our
decision is defensible because our main objective is to sell the building and pay
off our debt, thereby incurring no future interest costs. In fact, given the
difference between the proposed rent and our costs, we would save money by
selling.

The Committee agreed to make one last counter-offer to the buyer for either
three months free base rent, or $10 per square foot for tenant improvements.
The Committee agreed that $532,000 as the purchase price was acceptable, and
a lease rate of $25 per square foot for five years, with two five year options to
renew at mutually agreed upon rents, was also acceptable. The offer will be
made subject to Board approval.

The CEO will arrange a Board meeting early in the week of July 23 to approve
the offer.

Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 9.15 am



1O Sl dHON

€L0°ZIE'TS Z18'98Z%

%9¢ %
SYL'S96'T$ 008'9TYS

ZEO'6L9%  TIVI'PZES

699'69%  8V6'6ZS
669'6%

158'81$

6IT'TYS

£9£'609%  €6T'V6S
8£7'92% 9rr'es

TIT'1$ 605%
£17'e$ BET'TH
ZSE'ES 6EV'TS

9z'sys  STOSTS
SOV'09vs ITARYA4Y
99€'6T$ £50'61%

1€6'7$ vi$
70 ui 3uay Ag yoeq pied aq ||im xe) doud ul asealdu||szg'e T 0Z971%
vev'LS vLS'TE
159'7$ '958%
0% 0%
0z6'7$ £ETS

TET'ZZS 99T'v$

SS6'sv$ vrT'ET$
zLS'8$ TEL'SS

LLL'VYI'TS TVE'OVLS
629'TLS LE0'6T$
T88PIIS  ZEC'EvS
1Iv'ee$ ¥S6'vES
578'€8S'T§  bYE'SES
|sto1es LLOSTS
0L8'FHS v80'0T$
VES'0ETS  6vL'6Z%
L1S'80TS  950'Z6%
Z61'S25% 60F' 10V
(we) empy  unr-ady
810Z/LT0Z  LT0Z

%S

%ET

‘%ET

%S
%8

%1z

%ST
WELT
%S

%L

%971
%ET
%52
%1

%ELT
%0

e

%E6

%1

%Iz

%0TZ
%6ES

%z

%L T

%IT

19bpng
% dLA

000°000°Z$

%SE
000'S¥6'T$

000'S50°T$

000°0LT$
000'09%
000°0€%
000'08%

000'588%
000'8€$
000's$
000's$
000'8$
002'05$
00Z'60.%
00Z'0Z%
00%'T$
0%

0%
000'v$
000's$
000'9§
000'€€$

00S°LT$
000'v$

000'000°€$
000'0FT$
000's1Z$
000'02T%
000'006%
000'SL$
000°0TT$
000'02T$
000'022%
000'00T'T$
1abpng
610Z/810Z

796'L6%  T96'L6%

%EE
£89'VLVS E89'VLYS

905'9£Z$ 90S'9£Z$

16728 16£°ZZ$
SETES  SET'ES
Vs Zov'es
vSg9T$  ¥S8'9TS

SIIPIZS  STT'PIZS
599'8% 599'8%
6£Z% 6€28

'90T'T$  90T'T$

YT$ vvZ'1$
TLLTTS TLLTTS

Z06'LT$ Z06'PLIS

SO0T$ SOT$
SOr'Es Sor'z$
£v6$ £V6$
‘0% 0%
¥56$ ¥56%
099'v$ 099'%$
¥9§ 9%

950'L$ 9s0'z$

TLL'9ES  TLL'9ES
6L5'TZ$  6LS'1ZS

68T'TTIL$ 6ST'TIILS
81T'6e§  SIT'6ES
EVO'LES  EVO'LES
'888'/$ 888'($
LOU'EEVS LOL'EEVS
9627'71$  962°TT$
vpIZZs  wp1Tes
£SPTIS ESPEIS
'509'5z$  S09'sZ$
9/8'02T$ 948071
sjejo) unr-ady
Q1A 6T/8T 8T0Z IO

0SL'€9Z$

00S°Zv$
000'sT$
00S'L$
000'0Z%

0S2'1ZZ$
005'6%

0SZ'T$
0SZ'T$

000§
0S5'2T$

00£'LLT$

050°'s$

05€$
0%
0%

000'T$

0SZ'1$

00S'T$
052'8$

000°05L%
000'5€$
05£'eS$
000°0€$

000'522$
0S£'81%

00S'42%

0000€$
000'55$
000'5£Z$

jebpng 1D

SISVE HSYD - sjuesn

Jwodul 9N
5150 |ej0)

s3s0) Buisiespuny jejo)

Buinig pauue|d 1@ SUolejY Jouog
Sjuang

|eaddy Buuds g sewisuyd

sys0) Bujsiespung

§150D uolensIuIPY |210]
UONEZIHOWY

(}e15 19 suieaunjon) abeayw @ |2Ae. )L
auoydaja

sanq 1@ suondulsqns

531507 9sea Jandwo) 1B sga 'Biemyos
Syyauag g salejes

5994 [BUDISS3J0ld

sasuadx] YO

53507 Aduedndp

1sa1alu] abebrow

adueinsu]

uoneanpy

sasuadxj pieog

5384 JUBUNSIAU] 1 Jueg

§)50) uonensiuIWpY

6T0Z-8T0Z SISN3IAX3

maug Uﬂ.DU Wwioa) awooul 18N
U241 WO} WodU] BN

anuanay |e0L
BLI0IUL JUIWIsaAU]

(suoneuoq 1 saa4 16U IR 'S W LY ‘@Nuaial Jual sapn|du]) SWOdUL IYID
sjuang 1g sy!o Aued piyL

5318153

sanqu L

suoneziuebip Aunwwo) 1@ sqnjJ A

SUDIEPUNCS 77 SIUBID)

aelodio)

senpiapu]

2anos

6T0Z/8T0Z INNIAIY




TD 323ys 2ateleg JHAN

SIUBLWILLUDD M3Y GT/ET + OU3Y WO + Wwawdinbg Buluewsy 8T/21

LZ0'69ZS i ﬂsm.mma i I bujsg 1@ paniunuo) unowy

‘ \BEaH puefs] - sasjoAuy Jud nby BupiiTising

I _ _?w.h.mm.mw | | sajiifigen woL
~ . S950TZ'1S [9/2TLETS L|| | 3 o aaUejeg pUAY JUSWIMOPU
VEYL80°'TS BLI'SKZTS : ajuejeg pungd paLNsay

87004075 1 jeszzozes - T T T 3uejeq pund pamsan

0sob1ss | i160'TOSS - - - T 7T obebuoW Buip|Ing

T T |eewss SIS o - - T sa|qeAed apedl

o oS 0 - B 13|22} pue|s] 0} ang

) _ sapitigen
T |essuss | Mmﬁ.Gm...mm | | R555Y 1615
Guipuad punjsy 154 920085 SAPAPUIyZL2ES {gET'9ETS _ | S1as5v 2210
N lzstozis } ji8v'eaLs T o T T T sy jmiden
- 000°0FS 1 {zeooys o S " sui@n woyang

0000ss | {ssosss | B ~ maugapopwolang

R ) 1g0T’EESS -7 i T T T T TT T T sassauisng upususisanu

I 00ZTZZ'TS THEROE'TS T - T T T SjuslmopL3 - SUBLISaAL]

N B 702'698% JOVE'RSLS T T T pamsa - sjuaunsoal|

T LITTEETS feogzoets - - o s3oue|eg queg
| svozszuvinw  srozognnrv sisssy

) SLHOTIHOIH 133HS 3INVIVE




PasIASY SIUIWIWILSD Hi

ZT'T95'EE9 0S'0E8'BLT S | ZL'T6E'TI8 S

'00°000°0S - 00°000°0S 8102 |enuuy S3110§5300€ / 351N02 / [10f WIS
60°S8Y'SY - ) 60°S8Y'SY 8102 |enuuy sadoasoaulyy + Syaedaj
68°€9.L ZVE - 68'E9LTVE ~o8t0z Supds "~ {z) sionuo Juaneq apispag

6T0Z-8T0Z
ST'YY6ZT 00'8€6'0C 8T Z88'EE 1102 susjedue) sewy! SIYEIT [eaiaung s121S Q31
yT99s'ty - yz'99scy L10T ~sudjedwe) sewy sadoasoisAD 3|qixa(d JloMm
$9'€85'vE 9€'vSL'0Y 00'8EE'SL £102 sudiedwe] sewy s13Y233135 Jualied wooy sunesado
ZE955'TT - | zerossTt JAT A sudiedwe) sewy o s13Y213115 Ju3lled
98'199Z6 YI'8ET'LIT 00°008'60Z LT02 ~ " HouNieaseds a0
P3JIOAU[13A 10N STOZUNfOIplEd  Paniwwo)  pawwo)ajed  afoad/fpund 33lo1d/way|
junowy

SINIFWLIWINGD 40 1NATHIS




anuanay Apeas JHAN

68TTILS G6BITILS 68LTILS 6SLTILS 6ST'TILS  68LTLLS 68T'TILS  68UTILS  GSTTILS  6BLTILS  BLLESSS  190'WYS an

6ST'IILS 0§ os 0$ 0$ 0$ 0s 0s os 0$ LIVISTS  LIL'60SS  T90'vYS fe101
BTT'6ES 9TTSTSE  LBEVET  EST66T saunsanulf
Ev0LEs . | . | BTOT9ET  OFLETEL  68P6ZOT  BWONU[JBWO
888'L% | . . SZZET  0000TT  §5'559'9 Aued payL
LOL'EEYS . | | | . 00000s  tvioLsTy - . sate}s3
962°2TS | . . ] . 005209 0Z90TT  00'S9TZ sainqul
wrezs | . . . . 0029291  ZV788E  0000ST 02725
ESY'ZTS | . . : oseerTr - sup4 g sjueI9
509's2$ . . . | 000pS'9  SLOWBZT  8TvEZ9  awesodio)
9/807T$ _ . 10T90%L  95S8STE  SO6ZZST sienpinipul
sjeioL yuew  ferugey  fenuer  Jaquiedsg  JRQUISAON pgopo  mwquaydas  asnbny fing aung few judy 610Z-810Z
705't58'78 89V'2L9Z8  OLZSYYZS  OEhlO0VZS  LIL66028 VZLEZLVS  ves'ob9s  le6'si$ 0Z5'veS aLx

z0s'tse'zs 0§ 0s 0§ vE0'l81S  Ze'izzs  ovi'sss 58088 ©£59'0/68  G8Z'9L0'MS  ev8'oRvS  99v'SeS  0ZG'¥6S 1e10L
2689118 | 168'1S  9Z¥'SELS  L00'ZS ss9'ls zes sevs zi0Zes 9678 £0e$ SluBWISAAU|
16'6918 . . S62'0018  081'6% LE'ELS 196'018  L00'6S 92818 20298 Glz9s 679§ °woou Jayio
82'66$ | vs6'ss  ZIpS ze6$ 9r0'ss IS0 80G'LIS  9ovs 1858 08 ~ HAuedpayy
WLEIOLS 6iE'628  g6S'EYS 08 08 8YP'Z0LS  VIG'G00'IS  299'/9€$  0DO'0IS  000'0S$ salels3
826'82$ . 565% SHS 526% 025'98 09€'98 S6E'7S ovL'ZS 09228 air'vs sainqu
oL 'ohs 1Z0'ss  0szs 56228 995'6% 609'61S  005'Z$ 0% 00v$ ooges  00%0S
e5'5Z1S . 08 000'1$ 005's$ PIB'OIS  [S'ESS  000'L$ oz'oes 08 cev'ys  supdgsein
L0 . 000'92$  00Z'%% ze6'es 612228  00£'9S 059'2$ 662'G1S  00L'PES L9618 aiesodio)
SlE'vZes 08 0s 0$ clzis  ole'szs  vel'ss 60s'€e28  £L9'LLIS  lov'eZS  ShG'SZS  ZIO'MS  Usgus  SEMPIRU
s|eoL eunr Aew udy yasew fuenugeq Lt f q a  IequiaAoN leqojog  Jequeydes  ysnbny Ainp 8L0Z-L10Z
8L0'8L0'CS 91569928 OT0006L28 LL0LLZZS 0512961 6EVEOL S  Ze69ZL1S LLLISLS  8SL9/S§ 12000828 91678$  Z06'lSS aiA

8L0'810°'CS  Z0L'¥¥S  98Z'6LLS  €£S6TLIS  [26'WIES  TLL'@6LS  L0S'9eS S61'/868  BLO'LOKS  BEL'9ZES  SOL'Z9LS  vlOle$  Z06'lSS 1e0L
IW9'02IS  pIP'ezs  vSes oves L6788 2088 #298 olo'ees  sez'es sze$ 986’6l 2vbs v6vS slaunsaAu|
SIE'P.$  €2¥'9ES  96€'€S  Eiv'E$  00S'ES  0€9'es YEV'ES rza'es wzes BYLYS Lies oies zees © 8wooul Jawo
v09ZvlS  90S'0IS  €12% YEZPZS  GZ8IS  8OE'EIS  00E'6S 292718 oig'lzs  Oegues  9b'eS  GELZS 88LYs Aued piuL
887190°1S 92508 000'0SS  8I8'YZS  00S'U€ZS E€LV'IZIS  T19'M$ 165'108¢  £2€3 evg'6ES 16998 08 0% . sapeis3
€eC'e88  SOZUS  [€0ZUS  Se8'ls  evk'vS  O0BLYS 590118 rieS 51628 299'sis  1zv'ols  0sv'Zs L9808 sajnquL
wop'les 0.2 pOL'2S 05078 2T 0SIS osvs voL'ves  0zZi$ 0ss'9zs  6iS 08 185'018 09208
LpL'00IS  ov8TIS 0% €06'9l$ 08 6eg'9zs 08 000'+5 000'1$ 606'888  005'2$ 000'1$ 0% sup g Sjues9
6V0'Li2$  626'PLS  OZ9'tIS  10S'€S 001028 00IS 528'ls S6L'SYS  SZTSS 00¥'LS 16’828 SL0'LIS  005'¥ZS ale0dio)
96€'990°'1S  25G'6LZ$  666'L6S  8S8'SES  L6GLIS  08¥'1ZS  L61'0IS gee'opes  OvS'OLE  POL'LOIS  920'0Z8  96G'El$  GEE'ES  sEnpwpu)
siejoL aunp Kew judy yosew  Aienigey Ksenueq JwedeQ  JOQWEAON  1eqojpQ  Jequeldes  isnbny Ainp £102-9L02
20062828 120 0PL 28 800'S252S L6V'SECTS SIEPLLZS ELZTOGMS  6v6L00'LS 9/8'SSC'IS ELL'OE/S  BOS'6L9S  L6€°1298  L62'L.ZS [TV

08878 186ZEIS  ZIE'SIZS  ZIS'9RLS  ZeI'vOlS  ZvO'LIZS  vZe'loes £L0'6PZS  YOL'ZZOS  KOZ'LLLS  ZM'ee$  004'0S2$  L62'M.T$ 101
191088 269'S1S  €ELS 868% 6S9°0LS  PLL'LS 880'1$ evs'8zs  zi6s 120'ts SiS'8IS 988 08 sweunsany|
0SS0LS  999'PIS  169'Z8  L2'78  VEL'ELS  0BL'T$ 65L'28 IE0EIS 69928 1pLzs €O5'HS  bOvs 1658 awoou| JAUI0
£8L'8v.$  650'PS 0% 68G'8IS  000'SS STV 198'e5$ 89E'Z6S  1SO'0IPS  0IY'ZS 000°'5$ 0$ 68521zs sajeis3
0'9ss  0lELS  LIE'ES 00088 OES'eS  988'Z$ 0ee'zs 9ZzZI$  YOSVES  00Z'%S 0se'ls  006't$ %60'vs seInqu L
$8.'l68  06G'LS  OVE'WS  98v'SlS 091678 8ZZ'T$ zZ1'6$ 9£8'L$ 988$ vei'als 005'2$ 005$ 0se'ts 00% 08
ZZv'sLls  ove'ees  2Z6'.ZS  [19'88 08 08 08 001'1$ 625'1Z8 0% 05¥'s$ 2048 Z0L'el$ Sup4 @ SlUeIH
|eversozs  wisois  vesuzs  sozses  veoves  zesws 8z1'sl$ 66v'SZs  S9L'leS  S2L9KS  LETEIS  6R9'vls  LIZ'6LS sjesodiod
G2O'80V'IS  ISV'EES ZGY'OPIS  0Z8'0/$  pvR'Z8S  OBE'ESZS  GE0'LITS £9y'ZZIS  00Z6LLS  £Z6'CLS Lev'0es  zvo'lezs  eizBlS  SENPIpUI
s|ej0) aunp Aew Judy youep Arenigadq Aaenuer laqwedseq  JequaAoN 18qo)aQ Jaquisydes snbny Ainp 910Z-510Z




Code Brew - NRGH

2013-2014 Ju August |s_nmher October November |December |January February |March | April May June Totals
Sales 53,709 55,407 55,512 57,599 56,067 54,272 55,509 53,916 57,915 54,456 55776 55,253| 665,391
COGS 24,986 32,226 26,418 35,486 25,240 26,132 24,273 23,561 23,764 26,980 29,769 25,232 324057
Gross Profit 28,724 23,181 29,054 22,113 30,826 28,140 31,236 30,355 34,151 27,475 26,007 30,031 341334
Expenses 17,844 23,826 25,916 | 29,481 17,936 25277 19,182 19,981 24,984 30,243 19,553 35,074 289 287
Net Income before Amort. & Management Fee 10,879 -645 3,177 7367 12,900 2,863 12,054 10,374/ 9,167 -2 ?EBl 6,454 5,043 52,047
[Amortization & Management Fee 0 a 10,177 0 o 11,643 li] 0 10,880 1] 16,251 48,951
Net Income 10,879 545 65,999 i <=--"i 12,900 8,780 12,054 10,374' 1,714 2,768 6,454 21,294 3,095
YT 10,879 10,234 3,235 -4,133 8,768 -12 12,042 22,416' 20,703 17,935 24,389 3,095
2014-2015 July August September |October November |Dumher January February |March  |April Ma June Totals
Sales 53,225 48,934 52,727 56,957 57,140 53,228 56,446 49,650 57,184 55,287 54,131 50,369] 645318
COGS 24,428| 24,804 23,308} 28,551 26,675 25,276 32,347 29,242 22,345 34,136 23,197 30,820] 325,080
Gross Profit 28,797 24,128 29,419 28,406 30,465 28,002 24,100 20,448 34,838 21151 30,934 19,549| 320,238
Expenses 18,350 20,412 25,727 28,928 28015 26,340 J,_ngl 19548)  26101) 29317] 20705| 33,321] 298602
Net Income before Amort. Mgt Fee & Future | Tax 10,447 3,718 3,692 -522 2450 1,662 21 ?gl 501 8,737 -8,166 10,228] -13.771 21,546
Amaortization, Management Fee & Future Income Tax o 0 9,659 o Q 11,729 10,021 656 656 -9,553) 23,168
Net Income 10,447 3,718 5,967 522 2,450 -10,067 2170 201 1,284 -8,823 9,572 4,218 -1,622
I\"‘I’D 10,447 1&,16—51 8,198/ 7.677 10,127 &0 2,230 3,131 1,847 6,976 2,596 -1,622

July August ember | October November ’Dnnmbcr January February |March Totals
49,980 | 49,212 53,480 56,992 56,029 54954 57,497 53,122 62,444 52,739 655,205/
27,402 2?,426' 25,467 18,789| 29,422 33,515 24,126 26,349 29,759 24,414 331,497
22,578 21,786 28,013 38,203 26,607 21,438| 33,371 26,774 32,685 28,325
16,094 19,660 37,431 30,324 27,459 25,773 23,420 26,013 26,735 40,384
6,484 2,126 9,418/ 7,879 -893 4,335 9,951 761 5950| -12,059
0 0 702 702 702 16,081 -13.976
6,484 2,136 -10,118 7,879 -893 5,036 9,951 761 5,248| -12,059 4,000 39422 47,764
6,484 8,610 -1.50_9 6,370 5477 ﬁ 10,392 11,153 _12,401 4,342 8,342 47,764
2016-2017 Jul August September |October November |December |lanuary February |March | April ]Mg June Totals
Sales 49,786 51,046 53,030 56,760 55,723 58,722 53,960) 49.841) 56,626) 51,550) 52.000) 55,000 644,044
COGS 24170 17,385 25,996 30,840 24,874 25,698 27,395 20,749 26,956 24,943 25,000 27.000] 301,006
M Profit 25,616 33,661 27,034 25,920 30,849 33,024 26,565| 29,092 29,670 26,607 27,000 28.000] 343,039
Expenses 9,180 15,872 28,625 31,796 10,912 15,534 18,966| 20,620 28,720 19,138 19,500 19,500] 242,362
Net Income before Amort. & Future Income Tax 16,435 17,789 -1,590 5,877 19,937 13,491 7,599 8,472 95|:|| 7,469 7,500 8,500| 100,677
Amortization & Future Income Tax o 4] 235 o 1] 218 75 75 75 75 5 75 S03)
Net Income 16,435 1?;15_‘91 -1,825 5,877 19,937 13,273 7,524 8,396 875 7,394 7425 8,425 99,774
YTD 1.5._435 34,225 32,400 26,524 46,461 59,733 6?,253! TS‘SSG ?G.E 83,923 51,348| 99,773
2017-2018 July August September | October November |December |January February |mm| | April May June Totals
Sales 54,386 50,864 58,156 58 864 57,458 59,775 61,814 58,272 70,893 531,521
COGS 23,536 23,781 25,370 23515 27,422 24 675 28,854 26,886 29,198 233,275
Gross Prefit 30,850 27,083 32,786 35,349 30,076 35,100 32,920 32,386 41,696 0 [ 0| 298245
Expenses 13,153 18,746 27,886 19,980 20,044 23,890 20,658) 21,342| 34,046 159,746
Net Income before Amort, Mgt. Future Income Tax 17,697 8337 4,901 15,369 10,032 11,210 12,261 11,044 7,650 0 0 o 98,500
Amort. And Mgt. Future Income Tax 2,938| 2,952 2,945 2,945 2,945 2,917 2,974 2,945 2,945 26,508
Net Income 14,759 5,385 1,955 12,424 7,087 8,293 9,288 8,009 4,704 0 0 0| 21,993
Donation to Foundation at YE 50,000
¥TD 18,759 20,184 22009 38523 41609 49,902 s9,00| 67,288 21993 21,993 21993 21,993
2018-201% Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals
Sales 65,807 65,366 63213 194,387
Interest and other income 3,102 121 128 3351
COGS 29,295 28,356 30,170 87,821
Gross Profit 39,614 37,132 33171 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 0 0] 109,916
Expenses 18,704 22228 22,655 63,587
Net Income before Amort. & Future I Tax 20,910 14,903 10,516 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0] 46329
Amortization & Mgt Fee & Future Income Tax 3,042 3,042 3472 9,557
Met Income 17,867 11,861 7,044 36,772
YTD 17,867 29,728 36,772 36,772 36,772| 36,772 36,772| 36,772| 36,772| 36,772| 36,772| 36,772

CB Actuals by Year



S1ad

ELL'LE $ LIS'9T § TLL'9E $ OSL'ST § . (s507) awodu] 18N
c89 § 991 £08 SeT . | UOIEZILIO WY
0 $ = 0SL'8 05L'8 {HAN 03 5994 uawabeuey
- - - uoNnepuNo4 0] Uoneuoq
SSP'8E £89'9Z 62’9V S29'vZ sas4 Juswebeuep pue uoneziLoWY 31043q 3wWodU] 13N |
(8es’'L) 18Z's9 L8S'E9 STI'TL . asuadxy 1ejoL
0g $ L0T S0¢ LA [ELE
(szr) § Sy - szt uonesnpa pue Buiuies]
(s¢) $ 0S¢ sz - 00€ . auoydaja)
veg'y) § 626'79 16%'6S SLE'V9 s1jauaq pue saliees
(5290 $ 69L'T - 579 aueuajUleW pue sieday’
96¥)  § vz 621 529 | _ _ sanin
yyeaH pueys o3 pied Jabuoj ou yuas ysony|  (0og) $ - = 00% way
(08¢) $ €9 Sy sev suonowoid pue A1dgngd
asuadxa upne jo Buiwn|  (058) $ (Lz8'D - 058 i $89) [BUOISSDJOId
(9z9) $ TIL 661 SZET . . 220
(o0T) § ST - 00T sjeaw pue sbunsap
K414 { 559 474 00s I soueinsup
195 $ 8IS 196'T 00%'T sabieyo yueg
sasuadxy
L1605 TL6'T6  LIE'60T  0SL'S6
anuaaay jo abejuaad SO0 %9t %St %St
9zze § 1L TIsEE SZT awosu) 35aI3U]
60T $ 006'16 995901 5Z9's6 . uibiew ssoin
TZEOT  § €Z8B8L TZ8'L8 005'LL . . S3|es Jo 350D
792'1¢  § €TL0LT § [BEWGT § STTELT § | sajeg
aauenep L10Z 8102 610Z-810Z
126png ‘s [emdy - UBWIWOY 39bpng unp-1epy unp-aep 326png

8T0Z '0€ 2unr buipua Jayenb ayy 104
sBuluiez paulejay 1@ WOOU] JO JUIWIE}S

HOUN-malg 2po)




123ys 2ouejeg g

TS0'SOT  $ S2ZS'09T $
S18'C1 10Z'1S sbujuiea pauielay
1 T jeuded aseys
Aunb3 s sapjoyaieys
SET'T6 €2€'601 Aigen |elol
000'sS 0£0'SS siapjoyaieys o} ajqeled|
pua 1eaA 1e spied yib buipueisino jo anep| | 819'¢T 81971 anuaAal paudyed
z9s Z95 a|qefed saxe} awodu]
JA Jaye pied auiyosew ossaidsa 1oy uswAed jeuy sspnpul| | SS0'FZ $ €IT'IV $ sjenooe pue a|qefed sjunodoy
© RN
~sapuqer]
IS0'SOT $ SZS09T $ $195SY (101
z58'1 798l SAXVL IWOINI I3dNLNd
‘910z Buuds paseyoind auiyoew ossaidsa maN| | - 050'/1 S13SSY 1V.1IdVD
661'€0T €29'Tv1 1355y JUaLND |80 _.”
LS0'E 00S'y sasuadxa predaid
€LL'TT €LL'TT Kioyuanug
08L'S qLL'E 3]qeAISIa] SJUNODY
68S'TL $ 6/80TT  § ysed
| juaun)
sjassy
spuawwo) 8T0Z yuew 8102 aunr
|lenjoy |emay

8T0Z '0€ dunf iy
393Ys aduejeg

HOUN-maig apo)




Lifeline

2013-2014 Jul August |Segwnber October November |December |January February ]Mnrch | April May June Totals
Sales 57,936 57,669 58,321 57 569 55,586 57,335 57,508 56,380 57,721 57,961 57,034 63,488| 695,108
Direct Expenses 1,501 7.264 3,895 3,167 354 5470 2,277 3,829 3,175 4,018 2,939 4,004 42,293
Gross Profit 56,035 50,405 55,026 54,402 55,232 51,865 55,231 52,551 54,546 53,943 54,095 59,484 652,815
Expenses 26,337 31,500 41,173 37,885 25,375 39,585 30,414 31,676 41,249 46,521 27,797 54,749 434,261
Net Income before Amort. and Mgt. 29,698 18,905| 13,853 16,517 29,857 12,280 24,817 20,875 13,297 7,422 26,298] 4,735] 218,554
[Amartization & Management Fee 11,211 11,211 11,211 11,702 11,702 11,703 11619 11,618 11,620 14,351 14,351 14,352} 146,651
Net Income 18,487 7,694 2,642 4,815 18,155 577 13,198 8,256 1,677 6,929 11,947 3,61 71,903
YTD 18,487 26,182 _2_8,824 33,639 51,794 52,371 65,569 ?4,8_2_5 76,502 59,573 81,520 71,903
2014-2015 July August September |October |qumber |Deoemher January February |March _ |April M June Totals
Sales 57,612 58,597 58,505 59,126 61,823 62,573 61,849 61,645 63,422 67,324 74,804 77,751| 765,031
Direct Expenses 410 2,229 9,771 587 6,832 8,461 2,499 480 6,469 1,052 11,965 9,323 60,078
Gross Profit 57,202 56,368 48,734 58,539 54,991 54,112 59,350 61,165 56,953 66,272 62,839 68,428| 704,953
Expenses 27,405 27,792 47,950 42,194 34,447 45,840 33,060 31,928 55,099 48544 50,695 61,300| 506,254
Net Income before Amort. Mgt. 29,797 28,576 784 16,345 20,544 8,272 26,290 29,237 1,854 17,728 12,144 7,128 198,699
Amartization & N B Fee 10,652 10,652 10,653 12,217 12,217 12,218 11,434 11,435 11,435 12,647 12,647 12,647| 140,854
Net Income 19,145 17,924 9,869 4,128 8,327 3,946 14,856| 17,802 9,581 5,081 503 5518 57,845
YTD 19,145 37,065 27,200 31,328 39,655 35,709 50,565 4,000 -5,581 -500/ -1,003 -6,522
2015-2016 Jul August September |October November |December [January February |March il M June Totals
Sales 70,559 70,618 71,149 70,557 71,230 71,075 69,225 72,336 72,273 72,816 73,085 81,326] 866,249
Direct Expenses 261 9,179 5,951 3,404 10,213 9,890 5,189 7.204 13,§§§} 6,524 -1,074 15,826 B6,423
Gross Profit 70,298 51,439 &5, 198' 67,153 61,017 61,185 64,036 65,132 58,417 66,292 74,159 65,500) 779,826
Expenses 31,749 45,354 47,565 56,300 41,665 43,469 42,706 40,564 42,618 56,723 43,666 67,747 560,126
|Net Income before Amort. & Mgt. 38,549 16,085 17,633 10,853 19,352 17,716 21,330 24,568 15,799 9,569 30,493 -2,247( 219,700
Amortization & Management Fee 10,703 10,703 10,702 12,807 11 666 11,582 11,525 11,525 11,523 14,319 13,384 13,442| 143851}
Net Income 27,846 5,382 6,931 1,954 7,686 6,124 9,805 13,043 4,276 4,750 17,108 15,689 75,809
YTD 27,846 33,228 40,159 38,205 45,891 52,015 61,820 74,863 79,139 74,389 91,498 75,809
2016-2017 Jul August September |October November |December |lanuary February |March | April M June Totals
Sales 74,564 75,055 74,657 74,385 75,210 74,886 75,111 75,563 76,069 75,600 75471 78,929] 905,900
Direct Exp 6,283 9,799 8951 7,706 7,726 7,708 6,671 B,955 8,710 8,397 9,737 11,106] 101,749
Gross Profit 68,281 65,256 65,706 66,679 67,484 67,178 68,440 57,008 67,359 67,203 65,734 67,823] 804,151
|Expenses 32,472 46,347 67,663 44,509 46,378 55,198 50,547 48,822 65,759 50,924 49 582 57,343| 615544
Net Income before Amort. Mgt. 35,809 18,909 -1,957 22,170 21,1086 11,980 17,893 18,186 1,600 16,279 16,152 10,481| 188,608
Amortization & Management Fee 11,301 11,301 11,301 11,578 11,602 11,285 13,067 11,627 13,155 11,428 12,079 13,673| 143,401
Net Income 24,508 7,608 13,258 10,592 9,504 691 4,826 6,559 -11,5565 4,851 4,073 -3,1592 45,207
YD 24;508 E,llﬁ 18,858 29,450 38,954 _3_!.545 44,471 51,&30 39,475 44,326 4.2,399 4&20?
2017-2018 Ju ust Se ber |October November |December |lanuary February |March  |Totals

Sales 76,295 78,800 77,174 77,438 77,347 76,797 75,908 78,637 78,449| 696,945

Direct Expenses 8,000 9,051 11,366 8,548 8,276 1,755 8,172 8,034 8,317 71,519

Gross Profit 68,295 69,849 65 808 68,890 69,071 75,042 67,735 70,603 70,131 625426

Expenses 37 687 41,412 68,710 45,524 42,783 52,981 50,034 51,825 71,470] 462,426

Net Income before Amort. Mgt. Future Income Tax 30,608 28,437 -2,902 23,367 26,288 22,061 17,702 18,778 -1,338| 163,000

Amortization & Management Fee 11,326 11,446 11,363 11,812 11,465 11,465 11,465 11,465 11,465| 103,272

Met Income 19,282 16,990 14,26¢ 11,555 14,822 10,596 6,236 7,313] -12,804 15,727

Donation to NOHF at YE 40,000

Y10 19,2_8_2 36,272 22,008 33,563 48,385 58,982 65,218 72,531 19,727

2018-2019 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals
Sales 70,092 72,952 73,513 216,557
Direct Expenses 7,742 7792 8,699 24,233
Graoss Profit 62,350 65,160 64,814 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 192323
[Exp 46,863 54,255 36,862 137,980
Net I before Amort/Mgt Fee/Future I 15487 10,905 27951 1] 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 0| 54,343
Amortization 7,523 8,157 8,334 24,014
Management Fee 2917 2917 2917 2,917 2917 2,917 2917 2917 2917 2917 2,917 2,917| 35,000
Net Income 5,047 -169 16,700 21,579
Donation to NDHF at YE 0
Y1D 5,047 4,879 21,579 21,579 21,579 21,579 21,579| 21,579 21,579| 21,579 21,579| 21,579

LL Actuals by Year



SIm

%b0'S- %ZZ 1T %I YT aNU3A3Y B0 /AWIODU] I8N
%LV ET %9 BT %P6 el anuanay |e10] /UOIIBZILOWY 310jaq Aol 18N
(s6z'Lz) $ (€Z1'0T) $ 6LS'TZ $ vig'sy awodu] 13N
(98v'D) 691'82 P10 100592 uonezowy
0 1106 0sL'g 0548 {HAN 03 saa4 EwEmmEmE.
z o 4HON 03 uoneuoq
€60'VT 850°LZ EVE'VS 0sz'or s394 Juawabeuely pue UOREZIIOWY 31043 AWOU] JON
.nmva.mwv | LOB'ELT 086'LET ! SZ9'191
(00Z'T) 126'€ 055'T 0sL'T jones]’
(osz'T} L12 = 05Z'T uonesnpa pue Buiuies|
6L STET ¥96'T S/8'1 xe} pue auoydafs]
(Z6E'vT) LP'6eT 850'00T 0S¥'%ZT sHyPUIq pue salie|es
- 80v ££6 137 T4 anueuAUIBW pue sieday
(010'T) v1s'8 066'T 000 suonowoid pue AR1qNd
(58) £29'€ - 5.8 533} [eUOISS30IY
(osL) €69'E 050'¢ 008'€ PO
-abebuow ajes 3jqeuen uo aseaidul ajel 1sasdu|  9g8€’s 966'61 9g4'LZ 05677 51500 A3uednaoo pue juay
(0£T) Evp Sy 529 aouesnsul
68 ¥0L [4¥4 SZ9 sabieyd jueg
sasuadxy
6LV'ET ¥98'00Z | €ZE'T6T | SL8'10Z
91 § €9¢ 6E0'T S.8 JWodU] Jay3Q pue 3s31au]
(STL'6)  § 10500 § S8T'IET $ 000102 uibaepy ssoin
(£10's) % [ 06162 $ ] ez .cmm.mm sasuadx3z }alig
(eeLy) § 169'%622 § 8IS'STZ  $ 0ST'OEL anuanay uonejesu] pue Buioyuop
- ajueuep L1oz 8102 6T0Z-8T07
12bpng “sA |enioy - sluaLIWo)
1abpng unf-lep unp-Jew jabpng

810Z 'YI0E aunf papus Japenb ayy Jo4
sBuiuieq pauielay 1@ SWODU] JO JUSWleIS
weiboid aujjaj17 owleueN




193ys 2suejeg 11

8Lv'98S  L£9'S09 sBujuie3 pauiejay + sanijiqer] [e30)
€E0'ZPS £8%'95S sbuiuies pauleiay
I T |eyded ateys
Ainb3 s apjoyaleys
v vt €ST'6Y SaiI|IQer] Juaun) |eyo]
4HAN ©3 uoneuop gT//T 9609¢ 000°0F siap|oyaleys o} a|qehed
‘sjunodoe ualp predasd $z5's$ Pul] | 6¥€'8T £ST'6 sjensooe pue ajgeded syunody
usun)
sanl|iqen
8.¥'98S L£9'S09 S}assy |ej10L
920'v9v 68T'SHY wawdinb3 1 jue|d 'Auadoug
syt 8091 S}9sSy JuaLn) [e10]
'SpUNy 495 JusaWasiNquial asuadxa juels - €60'91 siap|oyaieys wodj ang
9Tv'L £95'8 sasuadxa predaid
vIv'L TS 3|qeAIadal SJUNOIDY
ze9’L01 TE9'0ET ysed
JuaLIND
sjassy
Sljuawwo) 810¢ Yaiew BTOZ aunf
|eny len1oy

QT0Z '0€ aunr buipus Jauenb ay) 104

193ys 9dueleg

welboud auiay] owieuen




To: The Board of Directors
From: Janice Perrino
Re: Executive Expectations — EE7 — Financial Condition

September, 2018

Report on Executive Expectation #7 — Financial Condition. Presented in
accordance with the Monitoring Schedule as approved by the Board. | certify that
the information contained in this report is true.

Policy Wording EE7: The CEO is responsible for managing the financial
resources wisely and responsibly.

Accordingly, the CEO shall:
1. Ensure expenses do not exceed 40% of overall revenue.

 Financial Reports have been completed for the 1% quarter, April to
June, 2018. Overali revenue is $711,189 compared to a budget of
$750,000, and total expenses are at $236,506 compared to a
budget of $263,750. Total expenses as a percentage of total
revenue was budgeted at 35%, with actuals to June 30 at 33%.

2, Only disburse funds pursuant to the Board’s Mission Outcomes (Ends 3)
and its Purposes as set out in the Constitution.

o All funds have been disbursed in accordance with the Ends.

3. Ensure the operating account does not drop below the amount needed to
settle payroli and debts in a timely manner.

¢ There are no amounts owing to Island Health at this time.
Sufficient funds are on hand to cover the payroll.

4. Ensure all regulatory payments and filings, e.g. Payroll remittances, GST
reports, Charitable Tax Return, are accurate and made on time

» All regulatory payments and filings have been made to date. The
Charitable Tax Return for the 2017/2018 fiscal year will be filed
prior to September 30, 2018, once the audited statements have
been approved.

5. Make sure that policies are in place to ensure the Foundation’s financial
stability and to safeguard its assets.

¢ The Foundation operates within a comprehensive policy framework
governing all financial and human resources issues.

6. Provide regular financial reports to the Board for the Foundation and each
subsidiary company that include but are not limited to:



¢ A comparison of the current year over the previous year and the
current year against the approved budget, with explanations for any
material variances

¢ A Balance Sheet
¢ An Income Statement

» The Board will receive the financial report for the 1% quarter of the
2018-2019 fiscal year (June 30, 2018) in the required format at the
September Board meeting. They will also receive the auditor's
report and their comments on the audit of the past year financial
statements.

7. At the request of the Board, ensure an audit of the Foundation financial
statements is conducted by a qualified external auditor.

» We are currently completing the audit of our financial statements
ending March 31, 2018 by the auditor appointed by the members at
the AGM in October, 2017.

Note: | have made a couple of suggestions for small wording changes in the
Policy for discussion. Please see attached.



Policy Type: Executive Expectations | Policy Number: EE7
Policy Name: Financial Condition Date of Acceptance of Policy: October 3, 2009

Date to Review Policy: Annually in Date Policy Reviewed: June 26, 2018

|| Mareh—July Date Policy Revised: June 26, 2018
Monitoring Type and Frequency: 34 | Monitoring Dates: Internal: FebruaryJuly,
Internal, 1 External/54 times/year May, November January, March

External: September

| The CEO is responsible for managing the financial resources of the Foundation wisely
and responsibly.

Accordingly, the CEO shall:

1.
2.

T+

Ensure expenses do not exceed 40% of total revenue annually.

Only disburse funds pursuant to the Board's Mission Outcomes (Ends 3)Ends
Policies and its Purposes as set out in the Constitution.

Ensure the operating account does not drop below the amount needed to settle
payroll and debts in a timely manner.

Ensure all regulatory payments and filings, e.g. Payroll remittances, GST reports,
Charitable and other Tax Returns, are accurate and made or filed on time.

Make sure that policies are in place to ensure the Foundation's financial stability,
and to safeguard its assets.

Provide regular financial reports to the Board for the Foundation and each
subsidiary company that include but are not limited to:

e A comparison of the current year over the previous year and the current year
actual against the approved budget, with explanations for any material

variances
e A Balance Sheet

* An Income Statement

At the request of the Board, ensure an audit of the Foundation financial
statements is conducted by a qualified external auditor.

[ Formatted: Justified, Space After: 10
pt, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering
Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 +

| Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0 cm +
Tab after: 1.27 cm + Indent at: 1.27



To: The Board of Directors

From: Janice Perrino

Re: Monitoring Report on Executive Expectations Policy EE 8 Operating
Reserve

September, 2018

Policy Wording EE 8: The Foundation needs to protect itself against
unforeseen loss of income or unanticipated expense.

In relation to this need the CEQO shall maintain a reserve within the unrestricted
fund and shall:

1. Consider any investments as part of this reserve.

¢ The Foundation engages an Investment Manager to manage its named
endowments and the funds set aside by the Board. The Investment
Manager operates according to the Foundation’s Investment Policy. All
funds set aside in this reserve are managed by the Investment Manager.

2. Maintain an amount of not less $550,000, representing the funds set aside by
the Board, in this reserve.

» The $550,000 set aside by the Board is contained within the investment
portfolio managed by the Foundation's Investment Manager. The current
value of these funds at the end of the last fiscal year (March 31, 2018) was
$928,567.

| have made some revisions to the Policy.to more accurately describe the
internally restricted funds, for discussion. Please see attached.



Policy Type: Executive Expectations | Policy Number: EE 8

Policy Name: Operating Date of Acceptance of Policy: October 3, 2009
ReserveBoard Restricted Funds

Date to Review Policy: Annually in Date Policy Reviewed: January 16, 2018

January Date Policy Revised: January 16, 2018
Monitoring Type and Frequency: Monitoring Dates: February, May, July;
Internal/4-timestyearAnnually November March

The Foundation needs to protect itself against unforeseen loss of income or
unanticipated expense.

Inrelationto-thisAccordingly, the Board has set aside funds within the Unrestricted

Fund, to protect the Foundation against any unexpected fluctuations in either revenue
or expenses. need-theThese funds may only be used with the permission of the Board,

and the -President/CEOQ shall-maintain-a reserve-within-the-unrestricted-fund-and-shall.

1. Invest these Board Restricted Funds with the Foundation's Investment Manager
according to the Foundation's Investment PolicyCensiderany-investments-as

part of this reserve.

& Maintain thean Board Restricted Funds amount at efnot less than $550,000,
representing the funds set aside by the Board-in-thisreserve.

2 Comment: The funds originally set aside by the Board are not really a
reserve, so the policy as it was written did not really apply. Instead, the policy
and the funds should be stated as what they are: Board Restricted Funds.

No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.27 cm,

Formatted: Normal, No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Highlight

[
{ Formatted: Highlight
(
(

Formatted: Font: Bold




